

## Lincoln University Annual Security Report For 2018

**Publication Date: October 1, 2018** 

## **Table of Contents**

Subject Areas	<b>Page</b>
Introduction	3
Reporting a Crime	3
Victims of Violent Crime	5
Confidential Reporting	6
Crime Warnings	6
Reporting Missing Students	7
General Emergency Procedures	7
Crime Statistics (2015, 2016, 2017)	11
Community Crime Prevention	21
Hate Crimes	25
Stalking	25
Sex Offender – Megan's Law	25
Alcohol & Drug-Free Prevention Policy	25
Mental Health & Alcohol-Drug Abuse Prevention Services	27
Lincoln University Sexual Harassment Prevention Policy	30
Annual Security Report Preparation & Publication	31
Title IX Sexual Misconduct, Sexual Harassment, and Sexual Violence Prevention Policy	32

#### Introduction

Lincoln University presents this report to the university community so that it can be used as a guide for exercising safe practices both on and off campus. The University has established a practice where this report is sent to every enrolled student through his or her lincolnucasf.edu e-mail. In addition, this interim report is sent to current faculty, administrators, and staff members through their Lincoln e-mail. Lincoln's Annual Security Report (ASR) can also be found on Lincoln's website at the following link:

http://file.lincolnuca.edu/2018/Spring%202018/Others/LU%20ASR-2018\_v1.pdf

Please Note: As of the publication date of this report, the government agency responsible for providing crime data for the first seven months of 2018 has not provided this data per our request. They are still working on it. Lincoln will update this report once this data is received.

Lincoln University is committed to having a culture that promotes safety and security for all members of the University community that includes students, staff, faculty, and visitors. This report is prepared by the Lincoln University administration.

This report will provide the Lincoln community with information on safety and security on each of the three buildings (main building, library, DI lab) that encompass the Oakland campus. Inside you will find information on how to report a crime, suspicious activity, and safety hazards. You can obtain a hard copy of this report by contacting Lincoln's Administrative Vice-President at 1.510.628.8031 or via e-mail at mguerra@lincolnuca.edu.

This report is provided is intended to be in compliance with the Jeanne Clery Disclosure of Campus Security Policy and Crime Statistics Act (Clery Act), the Higher Education Opportunity Act (HEOA), and the Violence Against Women Reauthorization Act of 2013 (VAWA). VAWA has amended the Clery Act to require institutions to compile statistics, policies, procedures, and programs for incidents of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking.

Lincoln encourages you to read this information and think of how it can help you and the Lincoln community prevent and protect yourself against crime. For more information or questions regarding this document please contact the Administrative Vice-President's office. In addition, if you have suggestions or recommendations for improving the health and safety of our campus community, please do not hesitate to provide those suggestions or recommendations to the AVP's office. Thank you for taking time to review this information and helping to make the Lincoln University a safer community.

#### **Reporting a Crime**

To prevent crime and to have a safe environment on campus, the University encourages you to report all crime, suspicious activity, and hazard situations immediately. You can report these incidents to staff members stationed at the entrance to our three buildings who screen everyone who enters these buildings. They can be easily identified by their LU name tag. In addition, you can report these types of incidents to Student Services, the Registrar's Office, the Admission's Office, or any other administrative office. You can also report criminal activity directly to the Oakland police department (OPD). Call 9-1-1 for emergencies or dial 510-777-3333 for non-

emergencies. OPD is responsible for all criminal investigations and law enforcement tasks pertaining to Lincoln because Lincoln is located within the Oakland city limits.

The Director of Student Services is responsible for maintaining a crime log that is available for public viewing in the student services office.

#### **Campus Security Authorities**

A student who is a victim of a crime may be more inclined to report it to someone other than the police. For this reason, the Clery Act requires all institutions to collect crime reports from a variety of individuals and organizations that the Clery Act refers to as Campus Security Authorities (CSA).

A CSA is an official of the university who has significant responsibility for student and campus activities. They are usually found in departments responsible for, but not limited to, student and campus activities, safety/security, student conduct, housing, or human resources. This designation also includes any individual who has been specified by Lincoln University to receive and report offenses. CSAs are responsible for immediately reporting crimes and incidents that occur on the Lincoln University campus. However, keep in mind that these designated CSA staff members are not law enforcement like OPD. Our CSA staff members enforce Lincoln University policies, and will assist law enforcement when necessary.

At Lincoln University, CSAs include: The President, Administrative Vice-President, Provost, Director of Accreditation and Compliance, Dean of Students, Director of Student Services, and other department heads and supervisors.

Administrative Vice- President & Title IX Coordinator	Dr. Michael Guerra	Main Building, Room 301	510.628.8031 mguerra@lincolnuca.edu
Dean of Students	Dr. William Hess	Main Building, Room 302	510.628.8013 whess@lincolnuca.edu
Director of Student Services	Ms. Anna Maria Gower	Main Building Room 103	510.628.8034 agower@lincolniuca.edu
Provost	Dr. Marshall Burak	Main Building Room 307	510.254.4749 mburak@lincolnuca.edu
Assistant Provost	Dr. Alexander Anokhin	Main Building Room 401	510.628.8016 aanokhin@lincolnuca.edu
Director of Diagnostic Imaging Programs	Dr. Khatia Mania	DI Lab	510.238.9744 mania@lincolnuca.edu
Director of Accreditation Compliance & Quality Assurance	Dr. Harpal Dhillon	Main Building Room 307	510.254.3756 hdhillon@lincolnuca.edu
President	Dr. Mikhail Brodsky	Main Building Room 203	510.208.2803 president@lincolnuca.edu
Director of Financial Aid	Ms. Wendy Vasquez	Main Building Room 208	510.628.8011 wvasquez@lincolnuca.edu
Registrar	Ms. Maggie Hua	Main Building Room 106	510.628.8029 maggiehua@lincolnuca.edu
Director of Admissions & Records	Ms. Peggy Au	Main Building Room 102	510.628.8038 peggyau@lincolnuca.edu

Head Librarian	Ms. Nicole Marsh	Library	510.379.4053
			librarian@lincolnuca.edu
Director of Computer Lab	Mr. Shakil Shrestha	Main Building,	510.628.8020
		Computer Lab	shakil@lincolniuca.edu
Director of DI Lab	Ms. Marina Kay	DI Lab	mkay@lincolnuca.edu

#### **Reporting to the Oakland Police Department**

Lincoln University is located within the City of Oakland and the Oakland police department (OPD) provides all law enforcement services to Lincoln University. Lincoln is located in OPD's operational Area-1, Beat 4x. OPD provides patrol, crime prevention, investigative, and emergency services to Lincoln and anyone on our campus. Police officers patrolling our area may be in uniform on-foot, on horseback, in patrol cars, on motorcycles, or on a bicycle.

In addition, Lincoln can address campus crime prevention and safety issues through the Oakland police department's Area-1 Neighborhood Community Police Council.

A person reporting a crime has the right to report the crime to the Oakland police department. If it is an emergency, dial 9-1-1. The 9-1-1 system has language translators than can provide assistance. If it is a non-emergency, please use the online crime reporting system at <a href="https://www.oaklandpolice.com">www.oaklandpolice.com</a> and/or the non-emergency telephone number 510-777-3333 for assistance.

#### Victims of Violent Crime

When a violent crime is reported by a victim to a law enforcement organization in California, victims may be eligible for several types of assistance (i.e., financial, immigration, mental health, medical) through the California Victims of Violent Crime Board. There services can be found at: https://victims.ca.gov/victims/.

In addition, Lincoln's student services department is available to assist all victims (includes those crimes reported or not reported to law enforcement) with obtaining a victim's advocate, mental health, physical health, counseling, an immigration support services. Lincoln's student financial aid department will assist with any financial aid issues. The administrative vice-president (AVP) will contact victim of a violent crime and inform the victim of the available resources. Additionally, the (AVP) will work with the victim to ensure there are able to contact the applicable victim support services. The AVP will document those actions for reporting purposes.

Lincoln University is also committed to assisting victims of violent crime who may need assistance with class attendance, course work, temporary leaves of absence, or transportation as a result of his or her experience. As explained in the paragraph above, the AVP will contact a victim and work with him or her victim in developing their recovery plan.

## **Confidential Reporting**

If you are the victim of a crime and do not want the University to act or you do not want to involve the police, you may want to consider making a confidential report. The purpose of a confidential report is to maintain confidentiality, while taking steps to ensure the future safety of yourself and others. With such information, the University can keep an accurate record of the number of incidents involving students, employees, and visitors; determine where there is a pattern of crime with regard to a particular location, method, or assailant; and alert the campus community to potential dangers. Reports filed in this manner are counted and disclosed in the annual crime statistics for the institution, and when they involve allegations of sexual harassment (including sexual violence) are made available to the University's Title IX Coordinator, which is Dr. Michael Guerra, Administrative Vice-President. When considering confidential reporting understand that California law requires staff to report criminal felonies to law enforcement that are related to child abuse, elder abuse, murder, and certain sex crimes.

Upon written request, Lincoln University will disclose to the alleged victim of a crime of violence or a non-forcible sex offense, the report on the results of any disciplinary proceeding conducted by the institution against a student who is the alleged perpetrator of such crime or offense. If the alleged victim is deceased as a result of such crime or offense, the next of kin of such victim shall be treated as the alleged victim for purposes of this paragraph.

#### **Restraining Orders**

Lincoln University complies with all restraining, no-contact, protective orders, or similar orders issued by federal, state, or local courts. In addition, Lincoln staff will provide the necessary supporting information when a victim requests that we assist law enforcement with obtaining court restraining, protective, or similar type court orders; and it is legally permissible for Lincoln to provide such information.

#### **Mandated Reporters**

All members of the Lincoln University community are encouraged to report known or suspected child abuse or neglect, and elder abuse. Because of their work, some members are personally required by law to immediately or as soon as possible phone the police or child welfare authorities to report any reasonable suspicion of child abuse or neglect. Mandated reporters include administrators and employees, and instructors.

#### **Crime Warnings**

The Clery Act requires that a timely warning be issued for any Clery Act crime that occurs on or near campus that has been reported to campus security authorities or local police agencies and is considered by the institution to represent a serious or continuing threat to students and employees. For Lincoln University; the Director of Student Services, the Dean of Students, and the Administrative Vice-President are the primary staff members responsible for campus security issues relating to the safety and security of people. **Clery Act crimes include: murder; manslaughter; sex offenses; robbery; aggravated assault; burglary; arson; motor**  **vehicle theft; domestic violence; dating violence; and stalking.** Warnings may be issued for other types of crimes as well, although these are not required by law. Crimes reported to pastoral and licensed professional counselors are exempted from the timely warning requirements.

The President of Lincoln University or his designee will determine what situations warrant the issuance of a timely warning. The determination will be made on a case-by-case basis. Factors to be considered include: the nature of the crime; the continuing danger to the campus community; and the possible risk of compromising law enforcement efforts.

Once the President or his designee decides to issue a timely warning, a message to the University community will be sent that includes the following information: information about the crime, the location, suspect information (if known), and recommended actions to be taken.

An example of a warning template includes:

- 1. "A brief summary of the type of incident that poses a serious or ongoing threat and the factors influencing campus safety or a description of a pattern (a suspect at large, egregious behavior, multiple events of a similar nature occurring, etc."
- 2. Prevention in formation related specifically to the type of incident.
- 3. Reminders on how to report any suspicious activity that could be related to this type of incident.
- 4. Assurance that any associated links to available resources are up to date and functioning.

## **Reporting Missing Students**

If any member of the University community believes a student has been missing, he or she should immediately notify student services at 510-628-8034 and/or the Oakland police department at 510-777-3333. For purposes of this policy, a student is considered missing when the student's whereabouts are unknown and unexplained for a period of time that would be regarded as highly unusual or suspicious by persons familiar with the student's plans, habits, or routines.

#### **General Emergency Procedures**

Prior to an actual emergency, you should become familiar with the location of the emergency exits where you have classes or areas you visit while on campus. You should determine the nearest exit to your location, the safest route to follow, and alternate exits. Building evacuation routes are posted in campus buildings. Leave the immediate area, but remain available to emergency personnel. If time permits during an evacuation, secure your workplace and take personal items such as keys, purse, medication, and glasses. In case of fire or other dangerous conditions, evacuate immediately leaving personal items behind. If you have a physical disability and you need assistance evacuating, ask for help and/or have some report to responding emergency personnel that you require assistance.

## **Fire Safety and Prevention**

Lincoln University publishes this fire safety report as part of its annual Clery Act Compliance. This report contains information regarding the fire safety practices and standards for Lincoln, including statistics concerning the number of fires, the cause of each fire, the number of injuries and deaths related to a fire, and the value of the property damage caused by a fire. There were no reported real fires or reported false fire alarms during the last academic year (2017-18), and from August 2018 through September 2018. Lincoln University's facilities manager tested the campus fire alarm systems on August 3, 2018, and they were functioning correctly.

Lincoln University takes fire safety seriously and has posted fire evacuation plans throughout Lincoln facilities that includes each floor, classroom, stairway, the elevator, and on emergency exit doors.

Smoking is prohibited in campus buildings. In accordance with California State law and Oakland city ordinances smoking is not permitted within 30 feet of entrance to any University building. Those found in violation may be subject to a \$250 fine of the Oakland police issue a citation.

All faculty, staff and students should recognize emergency situations as quickly as possible so preventive measures can be taken. Be familiar with the locations and operation of fire extinguishers near your office and/or classrooms. For fire extinguisher training please contact the Administrative Vice-President at mguerra@lincolnuca.edu.

#### Pre-planning:

- Identify and be familiar with your building/floor/classroom exits. Remember, in the case of a fire, elevators cannot be used.
- Identify a designated gathering site and inform faculty/staff/students in your assigned building/floor of the designated gathering site.
- Identify individuals with physical disabilities, permanently assigned in your area, who may need assistance evacuating.
- Inform faculty/staff/students that the policy of the University is that individuals must evacuate the building if a fire alarm is activated.
- Open flames are not permitted in the workplace.

#### Actions in the event of a fire emergency:

- Call 911. When calling 911 be prepared with as much information as possible such as:
  - Location of the fire by floor and office/room.
  - Identify any types of injuries of which you are aware and the type of help that is needed.
  - Describe any additional details regarding the situation to the dispatcher.
- Regardless of the cause of a fire alarm, evacuate the building or area of the fire. Remember do not use the elevators.
- If possible, close doors especially fire exit doors to help contain the fire and smoke.
- Warn and help others on you way out of the building.
- Activate the fire alarm system at the closed pull alarm.
- Go to your designated gathering site, which is the public street adjacent to the building unless circumstances require a change of location.

#### Do not do the following:

- Return to the building until an "all-clear" signal is given by Lincoln University Administrative Staff, the Oakland fire department or the Oakland police department.
- Use the elevator when evacuating.
- Leave your gathering site until you are accounted for by your supervisor or designated staff.
- Prop open fire exit doors.

## **Armed Person (Active Shooter)**

#### **Emergency Actions**

- Avoid The Threat. Leave the building or immediate area, if safe to do so. Call 911 upon reaching a safe location.
- Deny Access. If you can't leave the building, hide in a room where you can lock the door and turn off all of the lights. Try to place as many barriers locked doors, rooms, hallways, etc.
   between you and the perpetrator as possible.
- Block the door with tables, chairs, copying machines, etc. if you have time even if you can lock the door.
- Stay away from windows and out of the line of sight. Turn off all lights.
- Remain quiet, turn off cellular phones and other items that may make a noise.
- If safe to do so, alert other employees/students that an emergency is present, or imminent, and to quietly leave the area.
- **Defend Yourself.** If there are no other options, you have the legal right to defend yourself from an attacker.

#### **Earthquake Preparedness**

Earthquakes are an infrequent reality when living in Oakland and California. While we can't predict when earthquakes will hit, we *can* take a number of precautions to stay safe in the event of a seismic event.

- Drop, Cover, and Hold On
  - First, duck or drop down on the ground. Take cover under a table, desk or other furniture. If those are not available, use an interior wall and protect your head and arms.
  - Avoid hanging objects, windows, mirrors, tall furniture.
  - Hold on to sturdy furniture and move with it. Hold your position until the ground stops shaking.
  - Once the shaking stops check everyone around you to see if they are safe, then proceed outside.
  - Expect aftershocks. If you experience additional shaking; drop, cover, and hold on until the aftershocks stop.
  - Wait for information from Lincoln University staff. Cell phones may not be functioning correctly so you may also receive information on AM radio stations: KCBA 740, KNBR 680, or KGO 810.

## **Chemical Spills**

#### **Emergency Actions**

In Public Areas Near Lincoln University:

- **First priority is First Aid.** Any spill that results in personal exposure should be treated immediately.
- Eyes or Skin contact: If chemical is a liquid, assist the person to a sink/eyewash and flush the eyes or affected skin areas with water thoroughly and continuously for a minimum of 15 minutes. If chemical is a solid, brush chemical off skin gently. Remove contaminated clothing. Contact 911.
- Inhalation: Get the person to fresh air. Perform CPR as needed. Contact 911.
- When appropriate, **evacuate** staff and students from danger.
- **Evaluate** the severity of the spill:
- **Identify** the chemical spilled, the quantity, and the location of the spill.
- Regardless of the quantity, immediately report the following types of spills to 911):
  - Flammable, toxic, corrosive, unknown
  - Compressed gas releases
  - Leaking containers
  - Radioactive materials

## **Emergency Preparedness Communication**

The university is taking appropriate actions to ensure our campus is prepared to provide as safe and normal an environment as possible in these uncertain times. There are three web sites with valuable information:

http://www.ready.gov

http://www.redcross.org

#### http://www.knowhat2do.com/

Communication during an emergency is critical, and there are things we ask each of you to do to assist Lincoln University :

- When on campus, call 911 in case of emergency.
- Update your local and emergency contact information on file with LU. We will only be able to contact your spouse or other family member in an emergency if this information is current.
- Call home to let your family know you are safe. We expect campus phone lines could be overrun with incoming calls once an emergency occurs in our area or on campus. You can help keep phone lines open and campus operating as normally as possible by calling home and telling your family you are safe.
- **Communicate a designated meeting place to your family.** If you choose to leave campus in an emergency, make sure your family knows where you will go if you are not heading home (a colleague's home, for instance) and how they can reach you there.

Should any emergency situation require a change in campus operations, that information will be communicated to you through our emergency alert protocol. See the Lincoln University catalog for details.

## Lightning

- When a thunderstorm threatens go inside immediately for protection.
- When indoors, stay away from windows, water, sinks, and faucets.
- If you are in a hard-topped car, stay there.
- If you are caught outside, stay away from any object that could act as a natural lightning rod, such as tall trees.
- Stay clear of open fields, open water or small isolated sheds. If you are caught in an open area, crouch low to the ground; do not lie flat on the ground.
- Get away from fences, poles and other metal objects.

## Access to the Library, DI Lab, and Main Building

Lincoln University maintains private property status. However, access to the University grounds and administrative buildings (during business hours) is generally not restricted after being checked-in by staff.

## **Crime Statistics**

The procedures for preparing this special annual disclosure of crime statistics included reporting statistics to the University community obtained from the Oakland Police Department (OPD). For statistical purposes, crime statistics reported to any of these sources are recorded in the calendar year the crime was reported. Crime statistics include not only penal code violations, but vehicle code and welfare and institutions codes as well. For this report crime statistics for were obtained through a public records request to the Oakland police department records division. As you will see from the data, one OPD event may have multiple victims so the multiple entries in the tables are not in error. In addition, the reporting format for OPD has been be slightly modified for different years, which was modified by OPD not Lincoln. Lincoln University requested crime statics for the following geographic locations that encompass our campus and for public part of the street that are considered "on campus" for our reporting purposes:

- 401 15<sup>th</sup> Street, Oakland CA 94612, Main Campus Building;
- 420 15<sup>th</sup> Street, Oakland CA 94612, the Library;
- 1446 Franklin Street, Oakland CA 94612, DI Lab;
- 400 Block (odd and even) of 15<sup>th</sup> Street, Oakland CA 94612;
- 1400 Block (odd and even) of Franklin Street, Oakland CA 94612.

Based on the data provided by the Oakland police department, here is a summary of what was provided to Lincoln for 2015, 2016 and 2017:

## <u>2015</u>

Total Number of Police Related Incidents Reported during 2015:

- For 401 15<sup>th</sup> Street: 0.
- For  $420 \ 15^{\text{th}}$  Street: 0.
- For 1446 Franklin Street: 0.
- For 400 Block (odd/even) of 15<sup>th</sup> Street: 5.
- For 1400 Block (odd/even) of Franklin Street: 3.

There were no reported Oakland police related calls for services or reports that listed any of Lincoln University's facilities as the location of the event in 2014.

Report #	Address	Occurred (Date and 24-hour time)	Homicide (Yes/No) Hate Crime (Yes/No)	Domestic Violence (Yes/No)	Statute	Description	Uniform Crime Reporting Code (UCR)
15-014456	412 15 <sup>th</sup>	3/17/15 2336	N/N	N	PC245(A)(1)	Force/ADW – Other Dangerous Weapon – GBI	Assault – Other Dangerous Weapon
15-041201	415 15 <sup>th</sup>	8/3/15 0200	N/N	Y	PC273.5(A)	Inflict Corporal Injury On Spouse/Cohabitant	Assault – Other Dangerous Weapon
15-041201	415 15 <sup>th</sup>	8/3/15 0200	N/N	Y	PC273.5(A)	Inflict Corporal Injury On Spouse/Cohabitant	Assault – Other Dangerous Weapon
15-041201	415 15 <sup>th</sup>	8/3/15 0200	N/N	N	PC273.5(A)	Inflict Corporal Injury On Spouse/Cohabitant	Assault – Other Dangerous Weapon
15-041201	415 15 <sup>th</sup>	8/3/15 0200	N/N	Y	PC273.5(A)	Inflict Corporal Injury On Spouse/Cohabitant	Assault – Other Dangerous Weapon

Table 1: 2015 Crime Data for the 400 Block (odd/even) of 15<sup>th</sup> Street

\*\*\* Note that four entries are from the same OPD event.

 Table 2: 2015 Crime Data for the 1400 Block (odd/even) of Franklin Street

Report #	Address	Occurred (Date and 24-hour time)	Homicide (Yes/No) Hate Crime (Yes/No)	Domestic Violence (Yes/No)	Statute	Description	Uniform Crime Reporting Code (UCR)
15-003098	1400 Franklin	1/16/15 0001	N/N	N	VC10851(A)	Vehicle Theft - Auto	Motor Vehicle Theft - Auto
15-009906	1400 Franklin	2/22/15 0144	N/N	N	PC246	Shoot At Inhabited Dwelling/Vehicle/Etc	Assault - Firearm
15-060111	1429 Franklin	11/10/15 1351	N/N	N	PC211	Robbery – Strong Arm (Hands, Fists, Feet, Etc)	Robbery – Strong Arm (Hands, Fists, Feet, Etc)

## <u>2016</u>

Total Number of Police Related Incidents Reported during 2016:

• For 401 15<sup>th</sup> Street: 2.

- For 420 15<sup>th</sup> Street: 3.
- For 1446 Franklin Street: 0.
- For 400 Block (odd/even) of 15<sup>th</sup> Street: 23.
- For 1400 Block (odd/even) of Franklin Street: 28.

The tables below list the reported crimes to the Oakland police department for the addresses of Lincoln's three properties. As you review the data, be mindful of the date and time of the reported incidents.

Report #	Occurred (Date and 24- hour time)	Homicide (Yes/No) Hate Crime (Yes/No)	Domestic Violence (Yes/No)	Statute	Description	Uniform Crime Reporting Code (UCR)	Reported to Lincoln University Staff (Yes/No)
16-912273	9/14/16, 2135	No/No	No	PC594(A)	Vandalism	Vandalism	No
16-058100	10/31/16,	No/No	No	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny-Theft	No
	2106					(Except Motor	
						Vehicle)	

Table 4: 2016 Crime Data reported with an address of 420 15th Street - Library

Report #	Occurred (Date and 24- hour time)	Homicide (Yes/No) Hate Crime (Yes/No)	Domestic Violence (Yes/No)	Statute	Description	Uniform Crime Reporting Code (UCR)	Reported to Lincoln University Staff (Yes/No)
16-900280	01/06/16, 0000	No/No	No	PC459	Burglary- Forcible Entry	Burglary- Forcible Entry	No
16-013753	03/10/16, 1800	No/No	No	PC459	Burglary- Forcible Entry	Burglary- Forcible Entry	No
16-035649	07/04/16	No/No	No	PC459	Burglary-No Force	Burglary- Unlawful Entry-No Force	No

Report #	Address	Occurred (Date and 24-hour time)	Homicide (Yes/No) Hate Crime (Yes/No)	Domestic Violence (Yes/No)	Statute	Description	Uniform Crime Reporting Code (UCR)
16-030083	400 15 <sup>th</sup> Street	6/4/16, 2345	No/No	No	Found Property	Found Property	
16-059088	400 15 <sup>th</sup> Street	11/6/16, 1220	No/No	Yes	PC423(H)	Battery- Spouse/Ex- Spouse/ Date/Etc	Assault-Other Assaults-Simple, Not Aggravated
16-067502	400 15 <sup>th</sup> Street	12/23/16, 1800	No/No	No	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Motor Vehicle Theft)
16-067502	400 15 <sup>th</sup> Street	12/23/16, 1700	No/No	No	PC459	Burglary-Forcible Entry	Burglary-Forcible Entry
16-068085	400 15 <sup>th</sup> Street	12/27/16, 1745	No/No	No	PC211	Robbery-Firearm	Robbery-Firearm
16-912273	401 15 <sup>th</sup> Street	9/14/16, 2135	No/No	No	PC594(A)	Vandalism	Vandalism
16-058100	401 15 <sup>th</sup> Street	10/31/16, 2106	No/No	No	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft- (Except Motor Vehicle Theft)
16-905274	402 15 <sup>th</sup> Street	4/21/16, 2200	No/No	No	PC594(A)	Vandalism	Vandalism
16-057552	405 15 <sup>th</sup> Street	10/28/16, 1247	No/No	No	VC10851(A)	Vehicle Theft- Auto	Motor Vehicle Thefts- Autos

16-021193	415 15 <sup>th</sup> Street	4/21/16, 1301	No/No	No	PC470	Forgery	Forgery & Counterfeiting
16-023809	415 15 <sup>th</sup> Street	4/15/16, 0000	No/No	No	MP	Missing Person	
16-039451	415 15 <sup>th</sup> Street	7/25/16, 1502	No/No	No	SC Unexplained Death	SC Unexplained Death	Suspicion
16-914360	415 15 <sup>th</sup> Street	1/7/16, 0900	No/No	No	PC470	Forgery	Forgery & Counterfeiting
16-059796	415 15 <sup>th</sup> Street	11/9/16 2244	No/No	No	PC26350(A)(2) PC25850(C)(6)	Carry/Expose Unloaded Handgun in Public/Vehicle & Misd-Carry Loaded Handgun: Not Registered Owner	Weapons- Carrying, Possessing, Etc.
16-059802	415 15 <sup>th</sup> Street	11/9/16, 2306	No/No	No	PC244.5(B)	Assault With Stun Gun/Taser	Assault – Other Dangerous Weapon
16-912955	417 15 <sup>th</sup> Street	9/24/16, 0230	No/No	No	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Motor Vehicle Theft)
16-001192	419 15 <sup>th</sup> Street	11/22/16, 1900	No/No	No	PC459	Burglary-Forcible Entry	Burglary-Forcible Entry
16-900280	420 15 <sup>th</sup> Street	1/6/16,0000	No/No	No	PC459	Burglary-Forcible Entry	Burglary-Forcible Entry
16-013753	420 15 <sup>th</sup> Street	3/10/16, 1800	No/No	No	PC459	Burglary-Forcible Entry	Burglary-Forcible Entry
16-035649	420 15 <sup>th</sup> Street	7/4/16, 0918	No/No	No	PC459	Burglary-No Force	Burglary- Unlawful Entry- No Force
16-006759	425 15 <sup>th</sup> Street	2/4/16, 1730	No/No	No	PC459	Burglary-Forcible Entry	Burglary-Forcible Entry
16-903169	425 15 <sup>th</sup> Street	1/14/16, 1305	No/No	No	PC530.5	Use Another's Personal Identification To Obtain Credit/Etc.	Fraud
16-001363	449 15 <sup>th</sup> Street	1/8/16, 1216	No/No	No	WI5150	Mental Illness	
16-905187	449 15 <sup>th</sup> Street	4/19/16, 1505	No/No	No	PC594(A)	Vandalism	Vandalism
16-054783	449 15 <sup>th</sup> Street	10/14/16, 1543	No/No	No	PC664/459	Attempted Burglary	Burglary- Attempted Forcible Entry
16-009464	483 15 <sup>th</sup> Street	2/20/16, 2244	No/No	No	PC211	Robbery-String Arm (Hands, Fists, Feet, Etc.)	Robbery-Strong Arm (hands, Fists, Feet, Etc.)
16-910279	14 <sup>th</sup> & !5 <sup>th</sup> Street	8/14/16, 0645	No/No	No	PC530.5	Use Another's Personal Identification To Obtain Credit/Etc.	Fraud

#### Table 6: 2016 Crime Data for the 1400 Block (odd/even) of Franklin Street

Report #	Address	Occurred (Date and 24-hour time)	Homicide (Yes/No) Hate Crime (Yes/No)	Domestic Violence (Yes/No)	Statute	Description	Uniform Crime Reporting Code (UCR)
16-906403	1400 Franklin Street	5/14/16, 0035	No/No	No	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Motor Vehicle Theft)
16-906536	1400 Franklin Street	5/19/16, 2230	No/No	No	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Motor Vehicle Theft)
16-032737	1400 Franklin Street	6/19/16, 0145	No/No	No	PC242	Battery	Assault-Other Assaults-Simple- Not Aggravated

16-057960	1400 Franklin Street	10/31/16, 0130	No/No	No	PC211 PC242	Robbery-Strong Arm (Hands, Fists, Feet, Etc.) & Battery	Robbery-Strong Arm (Hand, Fists, Feet, Etc.)
16-059759- 014	1400 Franklin Street	11/9/16, 1800	No/No	No	PC243(B) PC148(C)	Battery On A Peace Officer/Emergency Personnel/Etc. & Remove/Etc. Peace Officer/Etc. Firearm: Special Circum.	Assault-Hands, Fists, Feet, Etc Aggravated Injury & Assault-Firearm
16-007486	1404 Franklin Street	2/9/16, 2200	No/No	No	WI5150	Mental Illness	
16-902473	1404 Franklin Street	3/7/16, 2030	No/No	No	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Motor Vehicle Theft)
16-906221	1404 Franklin Street	3/28/16, 1400	No/No	No	PC484	Theft	Larceny Theft (Except Motor Vehicle Theft)
16-907987	1404 Franklin Street	6/22/16, 1500	No/No	No	PC594(A))	Vandalism	Vandalism
16-910137	1404 Franklin Street	7/10/16, 1300	No/No	No	PC484	Theft	Larceny Theft (Except Motor Vehicle Theft)
16-910349	1424 Franklin Street	7/17/16, 0200	No/No	No	VC20002(A )(2)	Hit & Run Property Damage: Notify Owner/Etc. Requirements	
16-908439	1430 Franklin Street	7/2/16, 0350	No/No	No	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Motor Vehicle Theft)
16-057670	1441 Franklin Street	10/28/16, 2230	No/No	No	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Motor Vehicle Theft)
16-003369	1445 Franklin Street	1/19/16, 1745	No/No	No	OP	Operations Plan	All Other Offenses (Except Traffic)
16-064486	1445 Franklin Street	12/6/16, 1640	No/No	No	PC647(B)	Disorderly Conduct: Prostitution	Prostitution & Commercialized Vice
16-917600	1445 Franklin Street	12/26/16, 1930	No/No	No	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Motor Vehicle Theft)
16-007210	14 <sup>th</sup> Street & Franklin Street	2/8/16, 0000	No/No	No	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Motor Vehicle Theft)
16-008870	14 <sup>th</sup> Street & Franklin Street	2/15/16, 2200	No/No	No	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Motor Vehicle Theft)
16-010458	14 <sup>th</sup> Street & Franklin Street	2/25/16, 1814	No/No	Yes	DD	Domestic Dispute	
16-015099	14 <sup>th</sup> Street & Franklin Street	3/21/16, 2238	No/No	No	PC594(A)	Vandalism	Vandalism
16-017430	14 <sup>th</sup> Street & Franklin Street	4/3/16, 0050	No/No	Yes	DD	Domestic Dispute	
16-020618	14 <sup>th</sup> Street & Franklin Street	4/18/16, 2200	No/No	No	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Motor Vehicle Theft)

16-021704	14 <sup>th</sup> Street & Franklin Street	4/24/16, 0200	No/No	No	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Motor Vehicle Theft)
16-032354	14 <sup>th</sup> Street & Franklin Street	6/16/16, 2345	No/No	No	PC245(A)(1 )	Force/Assault With a Deadly Weapon: Knife GBI	Larceny Theft (Except Motor Vehicle Theft)
16-040788	14 <sup>th</sup> Street & Franklin Street	8/1/16, 2330	No/No	No	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Motor Vehicle Theft)
16-041115	14 <sup>th</sup> Street & Franklin Street	8/3/16, 2300	No/No	No	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Motor Vehicle Theft)
16-910937	14 <sup>th</sup> Street & Franklin Street	8/21/16, 1400	No/No	No	PC594(A)	Vandalism	Vandalism
16-060376	14 <sup>th</sup> Street & Franklin Street	11/13/16, 1056	No/No	No	Found Property	Found Property	

## <u>2017</u>

Total Number of Police Related Incidents Reported for 2017:

- For 401 15<sup>th</sup> Street: 5.
- For 420 15<sup>th</sup> Street: 0.
- For 1446 Franklin Street: 1.
- For 400 Block (odd/even) of 15<sup>th</sup> Street: 47.
- For 1400 Block (odd/even) of Franklin Street: 37.

The following six crime incidents (17-006787, 17-028503, 17-909283 were not reported to LU staff) were reported to have occurred within Lincoln University buildings:

Report # Address Occurred Homicide Domestic Statute Description Uniform (Date and (Yes/No) Violence Crime Time) Hate Crime (Yes/No) Reporting Code (UCR) (Yes/No) 17-0037344 401 15th Street 7/17/17 at No/No Yes PC 243(e)(1) Battery: Assault -Spouse/Ex-1450 hours Other Assault (Main Campus (2:50 PM) Spouse Building) Battery 17-054731 1446 Franklin 10/18/2017 at No/No Yes PC 242 Assault -PC 243(e)(1) (DI Lab) Battery: 1430 hours Other (2:30 PM) Spouse/Ex-Spouse 4/4/17 at 1119 WI5150 Mental Illness 17-017438 401 15th Street No/No No Main Campus hours (11:19 Building) AM) 17-006787 401 15<sup>th</sup> 4/4/17 1050 No/No No PC484(A) Theft: Larceny Theft Personal (Except Mtr. Property (over Veh. Theft) \$400) Lost Property 17-028503 401 15<sup>th</sup> 5/25/17 2115 No/No No LPROP 401 15<sup>th</sup> 6/15/17 0800 LPROP 17-909383 No/No No Lost Property

 Table: 7: 2017 Crime Within LU Campus Buildings

The tables below list the reported crimes to the Oakland police department for the addresses of Lincoln's three properties. As you review the data, be mindful of the date and time of the reported incidents. Many of the below mentioned incidents occurred on days when classes were not in session and one or two hours after the university closed for the evening, or one or two hours before the university opens for the day.

Report #	Address	Occurred (Date and 24-hour time)	Homicide (Yes/No) Hate Crime (Yes/No)	Domestic Violence (Yes/No)	Statute	Description	Uniform Crime Reporting Code (UCR)
17-902058	400 15 <sup>th</sup>	2/1/17 2130	N/N	N	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Mtr. Veh.)
17-011723	400 15 <sup>th</sup>	3/5/17 2048	N/N	N	PC242	Battery	Assault-Other Assaults – Simple Not Aggravated
17-012438	400 15 <sup>th</sup>	3/9/17 0742	N/N	N	Mental Illness		
17-0189979	400 15 <sup>th</sup>	4/12/17 1730	N/N	Y	PC243(E)(1)	Battery: Spouse/Ex- Spouse/Date	Assault-Other Assaults-Simple Not Aggravated
17-031250	400 15 <sup>th</sup>	6/15/17 1948	N/N	N	VC22651(N)	Tow Away Zone	
17-031258	400 15 <sup>th</sup>	6/14/17 1948	N/N	N	VC22651(N)	Tow Away Zone	
17-031262	400 15 <sup>th</sup>	6/15/17 0113	N/N	N	VC22651(K)	Abandoned Vehicle	
17-031262	400 15 <sup>th</sup>	6/15/17 0113	N/N	N	VC22651(O)	Towed Vehicle: Expired Registration	
17-031262	400 15 <sup>th</sup>	6/15/17 0113	N/N	N	VC22651(N)	Tow Away Zone	
17-910114	400 15 <sup>th</sup>	6/28/17 2130	N/N	N	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Mtr. Veh. Theft)
17-042363	400 15 <sup>th</sup>	8/13/17 2254	N/N	N	PC484(A)	Theft	Larceny Theft (Except Mtr. Veh. Theft)
17-006787	401 15 <sup>th</sup>	4/4/17 1050	N/N	N	PC484(A)	Theft: Personal Property (over \$400)	Larceny Theft (Except Mtr. Veh. Theft)
17-017438	401 15 <sup>th</sup>	4/4/17 1119	N/N	N	W5150	Mental Illness	
17-028503	401 15 <sup>th</sup>	5/25/17 2115	N/N	N	LPROP	Lost Property	
17-909383	401 15 <sup>th</sup>	6/15/17 0800	N/N	N	LPROP	Lost Property	
17-911064	401 15 <sup>th</sup>	7/10/17 2100	N/N	N	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Mtr. Veh. Theft)

Table 8: 2017 Crime Data for the 400 Block (odd/even) of 15<sup>th</sup> Street

17-911071	401 15 <sup>Th</sup>	7/10/17	N/N	N	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Mtr. Veh. Theft)
17-037344	401 15 <sup>th</sup>	7/17/17 1400	N/N	Y	PC243(E)(1)	Battery: Spouse/Ex- Spouse/Date/Etc.	Assault-Other Assaults-Simple Not Aggravated
17-911588	401 15 <sup>th</sup>	7/21/17 2210	N/N	N	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Mtr. Veh. Theft)
17-915562	401 15 <sup>th</sup>	10/2/17 2000	N/N	N	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Mtr. Veh. Theft)
17-909718	402 15 <sup>th</sup>	6/21/17 2145	N/N	N	PC594(A)	Vandalism	Vandalism
17-010285	408 15 <sup>th</sup>	2/24/17 1000	N/N	N	PC459	Burglary-Forcible Entry	Burglary- Forcible Entry
17-904061	408 15 <sup>th</sup>	3/8/17 0330	N/N	N	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Mtr. Veh. Theft)
17-024824	408 15 <sup>th</sup>	5/13/17 2400	N/N	N	PC459	Burglary-Forcible Entry	Burglary- Forcible Entry
17-021858	415 15 <sup>th</sup>	4/27/17 2230	N/N	N	PC422	Threat Crime: Terrorize	Assault-Other Assaults-Simple Not Aggravated
17-021858	41515 <sup>th</sup>	4/27/17 2230	N/N	N	PC242	Battery	Assault-Other Assaults-Simple Not Aggravated
17-029756	415 15 <sup>th</sup>	6/1/17 2400	N/N	N	PC484(A)	Theft	Larceny Theft (Except Mtr. Veh. Theft)
17-037177	415 15 <sup>th</sup>	7/14/17 0230	N/N	N	PC236	False Imprisonment	All Other Offenses (Except Traffic)
17-038143	415 15 <sup>th</sup>	7/21/17 1050	N/N	N	PC242	Battery	Assault-Other Assaults-Simple Not Aggravated
17-039150	415 15 <sup>th</sup>	7/25/17 0830	N/N	N	PC459	Burglary- No Force	Burglary- Unlawful Entry- No Force
17-042759	415 15 <sup>th</sup>	8/15/17 2248	N/N	N	PC245(A)(1)	Force/ADW-Other Dangerous Weapon: GBI	Assault-Other Dangerous Weapon
17-044556	415 15 <sup>th</sup>	8/25/17 1010	N/N	N	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Mtr. Veh. Theft)
17-044689	415 15 <sup>th</sup>	8/26/17 0823	N/N	N	PC594(B)(4)	Vandalism (Under \$400)	Vandalism
17-044689	415 15 <sup>th</sup>	8/26/17	N/M	N	PC242	Battery	Assault-Other Assaults-Simple Not Aggravated
17-915571	415 15 <sup>th</sup>	10/3/17 1625	N/N	N	PC459	Burglary-Forcible Entry	Burglary- Forcible Entry
17-052165	415 15 <sup>th</sup>	10/5/17 0835	N/N	N	VC22651(I)	Towed Vehicle	
17-053436	415 15 <sup>th</sup>	10/11/17 2345	N/N	N	PC166.4	Contempt of Court: Disobey Order	All other Offenses (Except Traffic)
17-915571- 001	415 15 <sup>th</sup>	10/3/17 1625	N/N	N	PC459	Burglary-Forcible Entry	Burglary- Forcible Entry

17-054562	415 15 <sup>th</sup>	10/17/17 1630	N/N	N	PC422	Criminal Threats: Terrorism	Assault-Other Assaults-Simple Not Aggravated
17-057605	415 15 <sup>th</sup>	10/26/17 2400	N/N	N	PC459	Burglary- No Force	Burglary- Unlawful Entry- No Force
17-008628	417 15 <sup>th</sup>	2/16/17 1359	N/N	N	PC470	Forgery	Forgery and Counterfeiting
17-013584	417 15 <sup>th</sup>	3/15/17 1102	N/N	N	PC470(D)	False Checks/Rec/Cert/Etc.	Forgery and Counterfeiting
17-011850	449 15 <sup>th</sup>	3/4/17 1900	N/N	N	PC459	Burglary-No Force	Burglary- Unlawful Entry- No Force
17-904925	449 15 <sup>th</sup>	3/22/17 2050	N/N	N	PC664/10851	Attempted Vehicle Theft-Auto	Motor Vehicle Theft - Autos
17-904925	449 15 <sup>th</sup>	3/22/17 2050	N/N	N	PC417(A)(1)	Exhibit Deadly Weapon Other Than Firearm	Assault-Other Assaults-Simple Not Aggravated
17-015855	449 15 <sup>th</sup>	3/27/17 1030	N/N	N	PC242	Battery	Assault-Other Assaults-Simple Not Aggravated
17-037711	449 15 <sup>th</sup>	7/15/17 1830	N/N	N	PC422	Criminal Threats: Terrorism	Assault-Other Assaults-Simple Not Aggravated
17-911548	449 15 <sup>th</sup>	7/22/17 0030	N/N	N	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Mtr. Veh. Theft)
17-065881	449 15 <sup>th</sup>	12/12/17 0800	N/N	N	PC459	Burglary-No Force	Burglary – Unlawful Entry- No Force
17-012126	450 15 <sup>th</sup>	3/7/17 1851	N/N	N	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Mtr. Veh. Theft)

Table 9: 2017 Crime Data for the 1400 Block (odd/even) of Frank
---

Report #	Address	Occurred (Date and 24-hour time)	Homicide (Yes/No) Hate Crime (Yes/No)	Domestic Violence (Yes/No)	Statute	Description	Uniform Crime Reporting Code (UCR)
17-005904	1400 Franklin	2/2/17 0600	N/N	N	PC211	Robbery – Knife Or Cutting Instrument	Robbery – Knife Or Cutting Instrument
17-009380	1400 Franklin	2/21/17 0818	N/N	N	WI5150	Mental Illness	
17-010873	1400 Franklin	2/28/17 2000	N/N	N	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Mtr. Veh. Theft)
17-910305	1400 Franklin	7/2/17 1315	N/N	N	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Mtr. Veh. Theft)
17-039680	1400 Franklin	7/30/17 0030	N/N	N	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Mtr. Veh. Theft)
17-912991	1400 Franklin	8/14/17 2300	N/N	N	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Mtr. Veh. Theft)
17-056252	1400 Franklin	10/26/17 1230	N/N	N	VC10851(A)	Vehicle Theft	Motor Vehicle Theft - Autos
17-900247	1404 Franklin	1/4/17 1100	N/N	N	PC487	Grand Theft	LARCENY THEFT (EXCEPT MOTOR

							VEHICLE THEFT)
17-906340	1404 Franklin	4/19/17 1240	N/N	N	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Mtr. Veh.
17-064460	1405 Franklin	12/11/17 1730	N/N	N	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Theft) Larceny Theft (Except Mtr. Veh. Theft)
17-001956	1407 Franklin	1/11/17 2045	N/N	N	PC487(C)	Grand Theft	Larceny Theft (Except Mtr. Veh. Theft)
17-001956	1407 Franklin	1/11/17 2045	N/N	N	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Mtr. Veh. Theft)
17-059920	1407 Franklin	11/15/17 2115	N/N	N	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Mtr. Veh. Theft)
17-906421	1409 Franklin	4/20/17 0605	N/N	N	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Mtr. Veh. Theft)
17-900442	1412 Franklin	1/8/17 0300	N/N	N	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Mtr. Veh. Theft)
17-919387	1424 Franklin	12/7/17 1940	N/N	N	PC594(A)	Vandalism	Vandalism
17-912436	1428 Franklin	8/1/17 1305	N/N	N	PC487	Grand Theft	Larceny Theft (Except Mtr. Veh. Theft)
17-913958	1428 Franklin	8/30/17 2015	N/N	N	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Mtr. Veh. Theft)
17-056949	1430 Franklin	10/29/17 0930	N/N	N	PC594(A)	Vandalism	Vandalism
17-025729	1432 Franklin	5/10/17 2400	N/N	Y	PC273.5	Inflict Corporal Injury Spouse/Co-Habitant	INFLICT CRPL INJ SP/COHAB
17-007602	1437 Franklin	2/10/17 0453	N/N	N	PC459	Burglary-Forcible Entry	BURGLARY - FORCIBLE ENTRY
17-021441	1437 Franklin	4/25/17 1730	N/N	N	VC10851(A)	Vehicle Theft	Motor Vehicle Theft - Autos
17-904781	1444 Franklin	3/20/17 21:00	N/N	N	PC459	Burglary-Auto	Larceny Theft (Except Mtr. Veh. Theft)
17-054731	1446 Franklin	10/18/17 1430	N/N	N	PC242	Battery	Assault – Other Assaults – Simple Not Aggravated
17-054731	1446 Franklin	10/18/17 1430	N/N	Y	PC243(E)(1)	Battery: Spouse/Ex- Spouse/Date/Et	Assault – Other Assaults – Simple, Not Aggravated
17-902568	14 <sup>th</sup> & Franklin	2/9/17 2100	N/N	N	PC594(A)	Vandalism	Vandalism
17-009159	14 <sup>th</sup> & Franklin	2/19/17 15:20	N/N	N	PC459	BURGLARY-AUTO	LARCENY THEFT (EXCEPT MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT)
17-018075	14 <sup>th</sup> & Franklin	4/7/17 20:05	N/N	N	WI5150	MENTAL ILLNESS	
	14 <sup>th</sup> & Franklin	4/17/17 18:20	N/N	N			LARCENY THEFT (EXCEPT MOTOR VEHICLE
17-906251	14 <sup>th</sup> &	4/18/17	N/N	N	PC459	BURGLARY-AUTO	THEFT)
17-020110	Franklin	18:35			VC22651(B)	TOW VEHICLE - HAZARD TO TRAFFIC	
17-908023	14 <sup>th</sup> & Franklin	5/21/17 0:30	N/N	N	PC459	BURGLARY-AUTO	LARCENY THEFT (EXCEPT

					MOTOR VEHICLE
					THEFT)
17-910662-	14 <sup>th</sup> &	7/8/17			
001	Franklin	20:00	PC594 (A)	VANDALISM	VANDALISM
	14 <sup>th</sup> &				LARCENY
	Franklin				THEFT (EXCEPT
					MOTOR
		7/14/17			VEHICLE
17-037342		13:54	PC459	BURGLARY-AUTO	THEFT)
	14 <sup>th</sup> &				LARCENY
	Franklin				THEFT (EXCEPT
					MOTOR
		8/31/17			VEHICLE
17-913731		21:30	PC459	BURGLARY-AUTO	THEFT)
	14 <sup>th</sup> &				ROBBERY -
	Franklin			ROBBERY - STRONG	STRONG-ARM
		10/24/17		ARM (HANDS, FISTS,	(HANDS, FISTS,
17-055917		22:20	PC211	FEET, ETC.)	FEET, ETC.)
	14 <sup>th</sup> &				LARCENY
	Franklin				THEFT (EXCEPT
					MOTOR
		12/6/17			VEHICLE
17-919398		22:30	PC459	BURGLARY-AUTO	THEFT)

#### Crimes Reported Directly to Student Services 2016-2018 (to September 2018)

Nature (classification)	Case Number	Date/Time Reported	Date/Time Occurred	General Location OC = Off-Campus
Assault with a deadly weapon	15-6260	3/10/2016	1/1/2016	Alameda, CA (OC)
Simple Assault	16-2893791	10/16/2016 12:59	10/15/2016 23:30	San Francisco, CA (OC)
Robbery	16-044154	8/22/2016 15:03	08/20/2016 08:10AM	Oakland, CA (OC)
Robbery	17-0501001	4/01/2017 02:15	04/01/2017 02:00	Fremont, CA (OC)
Robbery	17-0501001	4/30/2017 23:35	04/30/2017 22:30	Fremont, CA (OC)
Mental Illness	17-017438	4/4/2017 11:19	07/17/2017 11:19	Main Campus
Domestic Violence	17-0037344	07/17/2017 14:20	07/17/2017 14:00	Main Campus
Domestic Violence		9/18/2017 9:00	9/10/2017 18:00	Oakland, CA (OC)
Domestic Violence	17-054731	10/18/2017 14:30	10/18/2017 1430	DI Lab

# Based on this data, Lincoln University wants to remind students that they attend school in an urban environment, and they should be aware of their surroundings at all times.

#### **Community Crime Prevention**

When considering Lincoln University's crime prevention efforts, we know the Lincoln University campus encompasses one four-story building where nearly all of the students attend their classes, and two smaller buildings that house the DI laboratory and one classroom and the library plus two classrooms. This fact along with having less than 600 total students and approximately 100 full-time and part-time faculty and staff members is also a factor to consider. Keeping this in mind, crime prevention at Lincoln is a community effort involving students, faculty, and staff who provide the sets of eyes and ears for detecting and reporting suspicious activity or emergency situations.

Lincoln's crime prevention efforts include having staff members screening everyone who comes into the three buildings from the entrance. In addition, many parts of the buildings are alarmed and have video surveillance recording. Also, the exit doors in the buildings do not allow the doors to be opened from the outside or street side. Additionally, staff workers periodically walk through the facilities checking for actual or potential safety issues and suspicious activity. This includes conducting a room-by-room check when the last class ends in the evening. While all of Lincoln's crime prevention efforts work toward preventing crime, keep in mind that Lincoln University <u>does not</u> have a separate or designated campus security unit or department. Our staff members are not trained or licensed as private security officers. As such, all non-emergency or non-life-threatening incidents that would be reported to a campus security department should be reported to any Lincoln University staff member. Any emergency, potentially life-threatening, or violence/physical acts or threats against a person should be reported directly to the Oakland police department using 9-1-1.

As part of Lincoln's community crime prevention efforts, the Administrative Vice-President solicited input and comments from key organizational stakeholders in preparing this report, which included: Dean of Students Dr. Bill Hess, Director of Student Services Anna Maria Gower, Faculty Association President Chris Nguyen, and Lincoln University Student Association President Kripesh Bhandari.

#### **Downtown Oakland Business District Association Ambassadors**

Lincoln University is an active member of the Downtown Oakland Business District that is a designated Community Benefit District. This association has an Ambassador program that is available to anyone free of charge, which is described as: "The Safety and Maintenance Ambassador Program is the flagship program of the Downtown Oakland and Lake Merritt-Uptown Community Benefit Districts. Our program consists of 25 full-time, highly visible Ambassadors that circulate throughout Downtown Oakland providing essential security, maintenance and hospitality services. Our staff works daily to improve our neighborhood by creating a cleaner, safer and more hospitable downtown for all to enjoy." According to their website, their safety activities involve the following:

- Patrol on foot and bicycle
- Provide a high level of pedestrian engagement
- Provide a reassuring presence to reinforce positive perceptions of the neighborhood
- Provide safety escorts to tenants, residents and visitors
- Deter and proactively address low level quality of life crimes
- Document activities and track chronic issues for strategic follow up

• Build productive and collaborative relationships with local property owners, businesses, security personnel, and the Oakland Police Department to create a safer and more hospitable downtown

Lincoln University encourages all community members to program the Ambassador telephone number listed below into their phones, and/or obtain information about their program and contact information through their website at <u>http://downtownoakland.org/SERVICES</u>. The information is also available on Lincoln's student information bulletin boards on campus and directly from student services. Their services can be used during their business hours for escorts to your vehicle that is parked within the district and to/from public transportation so do not hesitate to call for their services. Their hours and contact information are below:

#### The Safety and Hospitality Ambassador Program Hours of Operation: Monday-Friday 7:00 am-10:00 pm, Saturday 12:00 pm-12:30 am For Ambassador assistance, call 510-898-8592

#### **Crime Prevention Suggestions**

With no intent to victim blame and recognizing that only rapists are responsible for rape, the following are some strategies to reduce one's risk of sexual assault or harassment (taken from Rape, Abuse, & Incest National Network, <u>www.rainn.org</u>)

1. Be aware of your surroundings. Knowing where you are and who is around you may help you to find a way to get out of a bad situation.

2. Try to avoid isolated areas. It is more difficult to get help if no one is around.

3. Walk with purpose. Even if you don't know where you are going, act like you do.

4. Trust your instincts. If a situation or location feels unsafe or uncomfortable, it probably isn't the best place to be.

5. Try not to load yourself down with packages or bags as this can make you appear more vulnerable.

6. Make sure your cell phone is with you and charged and that you have cab money. Don't allow yourself to be isolated with someone you don't trust or someone you don't Know

7. Avoid putting music headphones in both ears so that you can be more aware of your surroundings, especially if you are walking alone.

8. When you go to a social gathering, go with a group of friends. Arrive together, check in with each other throughout the evening, and leave together. Knowing where you are and who is around you may help you to find out a way out of a bad situation.

9.Trust your instincts. If you feel unsafe in any situation, go with your gut. If you see something suspicious, contact law enforcement immediately (local authorities can be reached by calling 911 in most areas of the U.S.).

10. Don't leave your drink unattended while talking, dancing, using the restroom, or making a phone call. If you've left your drink alone, just get a new one.

11.Don't accept drinks from people you don't know or trust. If you choose to accept a drink, go with the person to the bar to order it, watch it being poured, and carry it yourself. At parties, don't drink from the punch bowls or other large, common open containers.

12.Watch out for your friends, and vice versa. If a friend seems out of it, is way too intoxicated for the amount of alcohol they've had, or is acting out of character, get him or her to a safe place immediately.

13.If you suspect you or a friend has been drugged, contact a law enforcement immediately (local authorities can be reached by calling 911 in most areas of the U.S.). Be explicit with doctors so they can give you the correct tests (you will need a urine test and possibly others).

14.If you need to get out of an uncomfortable or scary situation here are some things that you can try:

15.Remember that being in this situation is not your fault. You did not do anything wrong, it is the person who is making you uncomfortable that is to blame. Be true to yourself. Don't feel obligated to do anything you don't want to do. "I don't want to" is always a good enough reason. Do what feels right to you and what you are comfortable with.

16.Have a code word with your friends or family so that if you don't feel comfortable you can call them and communicate your discomfort without the person you are with knowing. Your friends or family can then come to get you or make up an excuse for you to leave.

17.Lie. If you don't want to hurt the person's feelings it is better to lie and make up a reason for you to leave than to stay and be uncomfortable, scared, or worse. Some excuses you could use are: needing to take care of a friend or family member, not feeling well, having somewhere else you need to be, etc.

18.Try to think of an escape route. How would you try to get out of the room? Where are the doors? Windows? Are there people around who might be able to help you? Is there an emergency phone nearby?

19.If you and/or the other person have been drinking, you can say that you would rather wait until both of you have your full judgment before doing anything you may regret later.

#### **Hate Crimes**

The University strives to foster a safe and healthy learning environment that embodies diversity and inclusion of all members of its community. The Hate Crime statistics are separated by category of prejudice. The numbers for most of the specific crime categories are part of the overall statistics reported for each year. The only exceptions to this are the addition of Simple Assault, Intimidation, and any other crime that involves bodily injury that is not already included in the required reporting categories. If a Hate Crime occurs where there is an incident involving intimidation; destruction, damage, or vandalism of property; larceny; simple assault or other bodily injury, the law requires that the statistic be reported as a hate crime even though there is no requirement to report the crime classification in any other area of the Annual Security Report.

Note: A hate or bias related crime is not a separate, distinct crime, but is the commission of a criminal offense that was motivated by the offender's bias. For example, a subject assaults a victim, which is a crime. The assault will be classified as a hate/bias crime if proven that the offender was motivated to commit the offense because of his/her bias against the victim's race, ethnicity, national origin, religion, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, or disability.

#### Stalking

Repeated conduct directed at a student or staff member (e.g., following, monitoring, observing, surveilling, threatening, communicating or interfering with property), of a sexual or romantic nature or motivation, that would cause a reasonable person to fear for their safety, or the safety of others, or to suffer substantial emotional distress is misconduct and in many instances a crime.

#### Sex Offender Advisement – Megan's Law

The California Attorney General's office maintains a database of registered sex offenders by community, which can be found at: <u>www.meganslaw.ca.gov</u>.

Individuals can also view information about registered sex offenders in your Zip Code at the **Oakland Police Department, 455 7th Street, Room 313**. Information includes name and aliases, a photograph (if available), physical description including scars and tattoos, offenses committed by the registrant and the last registered county and Zip Code of the offender (offenders' addresses are not included).

#### **Alcohol & Drug-Free Prevention Policy**

Lincoln University complies with the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 and the Drug-Free Schools and Campuses Act Final Regulations of 1990. Lincoln has a standard of conduct that prohibits the unlawful possession, use, or distribution of unlawful drugs and alcohol by students and employees on Lincoln University property (Main Campus, DI Lab, or Library) or a part of campus related University activities. The Lincoln University Alcohol and Drug Prevention

#### policy can be found at this link: <u>http://lincolnuca.edu/admission/alcoholdrugfree#%2Fadmission%2Falcoholdrugfree</u>

The University will impose disciplinary sanctions on employees and students that ranges from educational and rehabilitation efforts up to and including expulsion or termination of employment and referral for prosecution by the police for violations of the law. These laws impose legal penalties for both misdemeanor and felony convictions. Criminal penalties for convictions can range from fines and probation to denial or revocation of federal benefits (such as student loans or immigration status) to incarceration (county, state or federal prison), and the forfeiture of personal and real property. All members of the Lincoln University of community have the right and responsibility to pursue his or her academic endeavors in a safe, effective, drug-free environment. For those Title IV students receiving federal financial aid, a student must not have been convicted of an offense involving the possession or sale of illegal drugs that occurred while the student was enrolled and receiving Title IV aid.

#### Lincoln University's Alcohol Policy

(http://lincolnuca.edu/admission/alcoholdrugfree#%2Fadmission%2Falcoholdrugfree) adheres to local, State, and Federal laws regarding the purchase, sale and consumption of alcohol, including those prohibiting the consumption of alcoholic beverages by persons under the age of 21 on campus and at University-sponsored events. Abuse of alcohol and drugs can have a significant negative impact on one's professional, academic, personal, and family life. Students, staff and faculty work collaboratively in developing educational programs that will encourage responsible adult behavior. The practice of students accepting responsibility for compliance with federal and state laws with Lincoln University's Alcohol and Drug Policies nurtures mature adult behavior.

At the beginning of the Lincoln University's academic year in August (August to July), the University notifies employees and students of their responsibility to adhere to the alcohol and drugs policy. In addition, Lincoln requires new students to attend a new student orientation session at the start of their academic program where they are informed of Lincoln's alcohol and drug-free policy and their personal responsibility to behave within this policy. Lincoln also provides new employees with training on complying with this policy.

The Office of the Dean of Students is tasked with administrative oversight and enforcement of this policy at the student level under the Administrative Division. This includes education, prevention, and enforcement activities. Additionally, the Director of Student Services maintains a record of all reported drug and alcohol related incidents that occur on campus or at off-campus activities.

A biennial review is conducted to determine its effectiveness and implement changes to the program if necessary and ensure that the disciplinary sanctions listed are consistently enforced. For further information, please contact the Administrative Vice-President through Lincoln University's general number at (510) 628-8010 or visit the Administrative Vice-President's office on the main campus.

#### Mental Health & Alcohol-Drug Abuse Prevention Services

Lincoln University takes the mental health of our students and staff very seriously, and offers confidential resources for them. As a reminder, mental health services are usually part of your student health insurance plan so you should contact your health care provider. Lincoln's student services staff are not trained mental health care providers, but they are excellent listeners and you are encouraged to drop-in to talk about anything that is bothering you. They can help you obtain services that you may need. In addition, substance abuse is a serious health issue, and Lincoln staff are here to work with you to obtain alcohol-drug related substance abuse or addiction help. Contact student services for assistance. Lincoln has identified several ethical and useful self-help sites that are available:

Moodjuice - <u>http://www.moodjuice.scot.nhs.uk</u>: can help you think about emotional problems and help work toward resolving them. Emotional problems are often body's and mind's way of indicating something needs to be changed.

MyCompass - <u>https://www.mycompass.org.au</u>: A personal self-hgelp program that you can use on your mobile phone, computer and/or tablet. You can learn new ways to deal with feelings, thoughts, and behavior.

#### **Anxiety Links:**

Social Anxiety - https://www.verywellmind.com/social-anxiety-disorder-4157220

https://www.anxiety.org/

http://www.freedomfromfear.org/

https://adaa.org

http://anxietynetwork.com

#### Attention Deficit:

https://www.adhdadulthood.com/

http://www.addvance.com

#### Culture Shock:

http://www.k-state.edu/counseling/topics/life/culture.html#Customs

Eating Disorders and Healthy Body Image <u>https://www.foodaddicts.org</u>

https://www.bulimia.com

#### Depression:

https://www.7cups.com/depression-help-online/

https://themighty.com/2016/10/how-to-be-friends-with-someone-whos-depressed/

https://metanoia.org/suicide/samaritans.htm

https://www.verywellmind.com/depression-4157261

https://secure2.convio.net/dabsa/site/SPageServer/:jsessionid=00000000.app20101a?NONCE\_T OKEN=8F64E1F35EE1EB773D7417BD4828EDA4&pagename=home&cvridirect=true

#### Alcohol & Drugs:

https://www.drugwatch.com

https://www.marijuana-anonymous.org

http://www.norcalna.org

www.niaaa.nih.gov

www.nida.nih.gov

www.samhsa.gov

Alcoholics Anonymous (AA) - www.eastbayaa.org

Moderation Management - <u>www.moderation.org</u>

Secular Organizations for Sobreity - <u>www.sossobriety.org</u>

SMART Recovery - <u>www.smartrecovery.org</u>

Women for Sobriety - www.womenforsobriety.org

General Mental Health:

Debtors Anonymous - https://www.debtorsanonymous.org

College Gambling - http://www.collegegambling.org

Raise Issues of Mental Health on College Campuses and Dialogue - http://www.halfofus.com

Relaxation Exercises - https://www.hws.edu/studentlife/counseling\_relax.aspx

Grief:

http://activelymovingforward.org

Health and Wellness:

Centers for Disease & Control https://www.cdc.gov/az/a.html?CDC\_AA\_refVal=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.cdc.gov%2Faz%2Fi ndex.html

Mental Health & Support - https://www.healthyplace.com

Learning Disabilities:

National Center for Learning Disabilities - https://www.ncld.org

LD Online - <u>http://www.ldonline.org</u>

Relationships & Sexual Abuse:

Letting go of a high maintenance/abusive relationship - <u>http://counseling.cofc.edu/counseling/relatends.pdf</u>

Co-Dependents Anonymous - http://coda.org

Anti-Sexual Abuse Organization - https://www.rainn.org

Sexual Orientation:

Parents, Families and Friends of Lesbians and Gays - http://www.pflagsf.org

Stress:

Strategies for Surviving Class - <u>http://today.cofc.edu/2014/08/14/strategies-surviving-first-day-classes-aug-19/</u>

Text Anxiety:

Managing Test Anxiety - https://powertochange.com/students/academics/anxiety/

Suicide Prevention:

National Suicide Prevention Lifeline - https://suicidepreventionlifeline.org/talk-to-someone-now/

CrisisChat - https://suicidepreventionlifeline.org/talk-to-someone-now/

Programs and Facts - https://www.jedfoundation.org

Yellow Ribbon Suicide Prevention - https://yellowribbon.org

Veterans:

https://www.swords-to-plowshares.org

Smoking:

https://www.verywellmind.com/nicotine-use-4157297

http://www.lung.org/about-us/local-associations/california.html

https://www.cdc.gov/tobacco/

https://smokefree.gov

Lincoln also has a link for mental health resources for students at the following link: <u>http://lincolnuca.edu/admission/index#/admission/mentalhealth</u>.

#### Lincoln University Sexual Harassment Prevention Policy (Interim)

It is the policy of Lincoln University to keep the Lincoln community as a place of work and study free from sexual harassment. Sexual harassment is prohibited on campus and in all University programs. The University does not tolerate sexual harassment and will take immediate action against any University employees, officers, and students who violate this policy. This policy is applicable regardless of the complainant's or respondent's sexual orientation, sex, gender identity, gender expression, age, race, nationality, class status, hierarchical position within the university community, ability or religion. This form of discrimination may also contribute to the creation of a hostile work or academic environment based on sex and thus constitute or contribute to sexual harassment. Harassment that may not be sexual, but still contributes to a hostile work or academic environment, may also violate Lincoln University's other non-discrimination policies.

The University is committed to protecting victims of sexual harassment, sexual assault, and any form of gender-based harassment; and will not retaliate against individuals because they report sexual harassment or take part in the investigation of sexual harassment complaints. If the University learns that any employee or student has engaged in retaliation, that individual will be disciplined. The University, however, may act against individuals who make intentionally false sexual harassment complaints

Members of the Lincoln University community, guests and visitors have the right to be free from sexual and gender-based violence and harassment. All members of the campus community are expected to conduct themselves in a manner that does not infringe upon the rights of others. The University believes in a zero-tolerance policy for sexual misconduct. This policy has been developed to reaffirm these principles and to provide recourse for those individuals whose rights have been violated.

Students who believe they have been subjected to sexual misconduct are encouraged to report these incidents. When an allegation of misconduct is brought to an appropriate University official, the University will respond promptly, equitably and thoroughly to stop the discriminatory behavior, remedy its effects, and prevent its recurrence.

This policy is intended to define University expectations and to establish a mechanism for determining when those expectations have been violated. Consistent with its commitment to addressing sexual misconduct, the University complies with Title IX of the Higher Education Amendments of 1972, which prohibits discrimination based on sex or gender in education programs or activities. Sexual misconduct, as defined in this policy, constitutes sex and/or gender discrimination prohibited by Title IX and other applicable federal and state laws.

#### **Annual Security Report Preparation and Publication Procedures**

Lincoln University has established a procedure for gathering data and preparing the annual security report, which is a team effort. The Administrative Vice-President leads a team that has representatives from the Office of the President, the Provost's Office, the Lincoln University Student Association, the Lincoln University Faculty Association, and includes the Dean of Students, the Director of Student Services. This team is tasked with helping to collect and interpret the data to help organize and publish a report. The Administrative Vice-President's Office is responsible for producing and distributing the report. Crime data is obtained through a public records request to the Oakland police department.

#### **Facilities Security & Maintenance**

All members of the campus community are encouraged to promptly report facilities and equipment issues to any administrator. The entrances to all campus buildings have a receptionist on-duty during normal business hours who is tasked with controlling entry. Visitors to campus are required to provide identification, company identification and sign-in. In addition, staff periodically conduct walk throughs of campus buildings throughout the day to identify suspicious activity or health and safety hazards. They also ensure the doors are locked at the end of the business day.

## **Lincoln University**

## **Title IX Sexual Misconduct, Sexual Harassment**

## and Sexual Violence Prevention Policy

Designated Title IX Officer & Coordinator: Dr. Michael A. Guerra, Administrative Vice-President
Deputy Title IX Coordinator: Dr. William Hess, Dean of Students
Deputy Title IX Coordinator: Dr. Marshall Burak, Provost

#### Introduction

It is the policy of Lincoln University to keep the Lincoln community as a place of work and study free from sexual harassment. Sexual harassment is prohibited on campus and in all University programs. The University does not tolerate sexual harassment and will take immediate action against any University employees, officers, and students who violate this policy. This policy is applicable regardless of the complainant's or respondent's sexual orientation, sex, gender identity, gender expression, age, race, nationality, class status, hierarchical position within the university community, ability or religion. This form of discrimination may also contribute to the creation of a hostile work or academic environment based on sex and thus constitute or contribute to sexual harassment. Harassment that may not be sexual, but still contributes to a hostile work or academic environment, may also violate Lincoln University's other non-discrimination policies.

The University is committed to protecting victims of sexual harassment, sexual assault, and any form of gender-based harassment; and will not retaliate against individuals because they report sexual harassment or take part in the investigation of sexual harassment complaints. If the University learns that any employee or student has engaged in retaliation, that individual will be disciplined. The University, however, may act against individuals who make intentionally false sexual harassment complaints

Members of the Lincoln University community, guests and visitors have the right to be free from sexual and gender-based violence and harassment. All members of the campus community are expected to conduct themselves in a manner that does not infringe upon the rights of others. The University believes in a zero-tolerance policy for sexual misconduct. This policy has been developed to reaffirm these principles and to provide recourse for those individuals whose rights have been violated.

Students who believe they have been subjected to sexual misconduct are encouraged to report these incidents. When an allegation of misconduct is brought to an appropriate University official, the University will respond promptly, equitably and thoroughly to stop the discriminatory behavior, remedy its effects, and prevent its recurrence.

This policy is intended to define University expectations and to establish a mechanism for determining when those expectations have been violated. Consistent with its commitment to addressing sexual misconduct, the University complies with Title IX of the Higher Education Amendments of 1972, which prohibits discrimination based on sex or gender in education programs or activities. Sexual misconduct, as defined in this policy, constitutes sex and/or gender discrimination prohibited by Title IX and other applicable federal and state laws.

**Duty to Report:** Any employee who knows or has reason to know of allegations or acts that violate this policy shall promptly inform the Title IX Coordinator. These Employees are required to disclose all information including names of the Parties, **even where the person has requested that his/her name remain confidential.** The Title IX Coordinator will determine whether confidentiality is appropriate given the circumstances of each such incident.

#### **Conduct that is Prohibited**

#### 1. Sexual Violence:

- Sexual Assault Penetration: Without the consent of the Complainant, penetration, no matter how slight, of the vagina, anus, or mouth by a penis; or the vagina or anus by any body part or object.
- Sexual Assault Contact: Without the consent of the Complainant, touching an intimate body part (genitals, anus, groin, breast, or buttocks (unclothed or clothed). Note: As this definition encompasses a broad spectrum of conduct, not all of which constitutes sexual violence. The Title IX Officer will determine whether the allegation should be treated as sexual violence or sexual harassment.

Note: Sexual Assault--Penetration and Sexual Assault - Contact are aggravated when it includes the following: Overcoming the will of Complainant by force, threat of force, or duress (hardship, direct or implied). In addition, deliberately causing a person to be incapacitated (through drugs or alcohol) is considered aggravated along with intentionally taking advantage of the other person's incapacitation (including voluntary intoxication). Also, recording, photographing, transmitting, or distributing intimate or sexual images without the prior knowledge and consent of the parties involved is considered aggravated.

- 2. **Relationship Violence**: Dating Violence: Conduct by a person who is or has been in a romantic or intimate relationship with the Complainant that intentionally, or recklessly, causes bodily injury to the Complainant or places the Complainant in reasonable fear of serious bodily injury. The nature of the relationship between the Complainant and Respondent is determined by the length, type, and frequency of interaction between them.
- 3. **Domestic Violence**: Conduct by a current or former spouse or intimate partner of the Complainant; or a person with whom the Complainant shares a child in common, that

intentionally, or recklessly, causes bodily injury to the Complainant or another, or places the Complainant or another in reasonable fear of serious bodily injury.

- 4. **Stalking**: Repeated conduct directed at a Complainant (e.g., following, monitoring, observing, surveilling, threatening, communicating or interfering with property), of a sexual or romantic nature or motivation, that would cause a reasonable person to fear for their safety, or the safety of others, or to suffer substantial emotional distress.
- 5. **Sexual Harassment**: Is unwelcome sexual advances, unwelcome requests for sexual favors, and other unwelcome verbal, nonverbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when.
  - Quid Pro Quo: a person's submission to such conduct is implicitly or explicitly made the basis for employment decisions, academic evaluation, grades or advancement, or other decisions affecting participation in a University program.
  - Sexual harassment may include incidents between any members of the University community, including faculty, other academic appointees, staff, student employees, students, interns, and non-student or non-employee participants in University programs (e.g., vendors, contractors, visitors, and patients).
- 6. Hostile Environment: such conduct is sufficiently severe or pervasive that it unreasonably denies, adversely limits, or interferes with a person's participation in or benefit from the education, employment or other programs and services of Lincoln University and creates an environment that a reasonable person would find to be intimidating, offensive or bullying behavior. This also applies to hierarchical relationships (i.e., student faculty member) and between peers; and between individuals of any gender or gender identity.

#### **University Procedure**

Lincoln University reserves the right to take whatever measures it deems necessary in response to an allegation of sexual misconduct to protect the rights and personal safety of the students and the University community. Such measures include, but are not limited to: modification of student housing arrangements and class schedule, interim suspension from campus pending a conduct proceeding, suspension or expulsion from extracurricular activities through student services, and reporting the matter to the Oakland police department.

Not all forms of sexual misconduct will be deemed to be equally serious offenses, and Lincoln University reserves the right to impose different sanctions when a student is found to have violated this policy, ranging from verbal warning to expulsion, depending on the severity of the offense. Lincoln University will consider the concerns and rights of the complainant, the respondent, and the University.

#### **Confidentiality and Reporting**

Depending on their roles at Lincoln University, staff have varying reporting responsibilities and abilities to maintain confidentiality. To make informed choices, one should be aware of confidentiality and mandatory reporting requirements when consulting campus resources. On campus, some resources may maintain confidentiality, offering options and advice without any obligation to inform an outside agency or individual unless one has requested information to be shared. Other resources exist for one to report crimes and policy violations and these resources will act when one reports an alleged violation to them.

If a victim of sexual misconduct would like the details of an incident to be kept confidential, she or he may speak with credentialed on-campus counselors, off-campus rape crisis counselors, domestic violence resources, private agencies, and/or members of the clergy/chaplains who will maintain confidentiality except in extreme cases of immediacy of threat or danger or abuse of a minor.

#### **Reporting Options:**

Complainants are encouraged to speak to Lincoln University representatives and administrators, such as trusted faculty and staff, program directors or administrators, Lincoln's Title IX Coordinator, Deputy Title IX Coordinators, the Dean of Students, the Provost, and the Oakland police department to make reports of incidents of sexual misconduct. Complainants have the right, and can expect, to have complaints taken seriously by the Lincoln University when reported, and to have those incidents investigated and properly resolved through these procedures. Reporting still affords privacy to the reporter, and only a small group of officials who need to know will be told. Information will be shared as necessary with investigators, witnesses and the accused student/respondent. The circle of people with this knowledge will be kept as tight as possible to preserve a complainant's rights and privacy.

#### **Timeline for Making Reports:**

There is no time limit for reporting, but Lincoln University encourages reports of prohibited misconduct to be made as soon as possible. All incidents should be reported as soon as possible even if significant time has passed. The sooner the report is made the better the University will be able to respond, investigate, and provide an appropriate remedy with discipline is appropriate.

#### **Initial Assessment of a Report**

The Title IX Officer will make an initial assessment of the report as soon as possible after receiving the report to determine whether the report in its face value alleges an act of prohibited conduct, and such conduct has a sufficient nexus with Lincoln University for it to intervene. The Title IX Officer may consult with deputy Title IX officers, appropriate academic officers for faculty and other academic appointees' complaints, and with Human Resources. In the event the Title IX Coordinator is the subject of the complaint or has a conflict of interest, a Deputy Title IX Coordinator will assume the Coordinator's role.

The Title IX Officer, in coordination with the relevant staff shall make an immediate assessment concerning the health and safety of the individual and the campus community, implement

temporary remedies immediately necessary (including no contact orders), and provide to the Complainant a written explanation of rights and reporting options (including the right to make reports to the police), and available campus and community resources.

Lincoln University administrators in compliance with federal law must issue timely warnings and/or emergency notifications for incidents reported to them that pose a serious or ongoing threat to the campus community. The University will make every effort to ensure that a victim's name and other personally identifying information is not disclosed, while still providing enough information for community members to make decisions considering the potential danger.

#### **Definitions of a Complainant and Respondent:**

- Complainant: Any person who files a report of sexual violence or sexual harassment or other prohibited behavior or retaliation or any person who has been the alleged subject of such Prohibited Conduct or retaliation.
- Respondent: A person alleged to have engaged in Prohibited Conduct and about whom a report of sexual violence, sexual harassment, other prohibited behavior, or retaliation is made.

#### Consent

Consent is affirmative, conscious, voluntary, and revocable. Consent to sexual activity requires of both persons an affirmative, conscious, and voluntary agreement to engage in sexual activity. It is the responsibility of each person to ensure they have the affirmative consent of the other to engage in the sexual activity. Lack of protest, lack of resistance, or silence do not alone constitute consent. Affirmative consent must be ongoing and can be revoked at any time during sexual activity. The existence of a dating relationship or past sexual relations between the persons involved should never by itself be assumed to be an indicator of consent (nor will subsequent sexual relations or dating relationship alone suffice as evidence of consent to prior conduct.

The Respondent's belief that the Complainant consented shall not provide a valid excuse where: The Respondent's belief arose from the Respondent's own intoxication or recklessness; The Respondent did not take reasonable steps, in the circumstances known to the Respondent at the time, to ascertain whether the Complainant affirmatively consented; or the Respondent knew or a reasonable person should have known that the Complainant was unable to consent because the Complainant was incapacitated, in that the Complainant was: asleep or unconscious; due to the influence of drugs, alcohol, or medication, unable to understand the fact, nature, or extent of the sexual activity; or unable to communicate due to a mental or physical condition.

#### Retaliation

Retaliation includes threats, intimidation, reprisals, and/or adverse employment or educational actions against a person based on their report of prohibited conduct or participation in the investigation, report, remedial, or disciplinary processes provided for in this Policy.

#### Jurisdiction of Lincoln University

The University has jurisdiction over alleged violations of this policy that occur on University property (such as offices, classrooms, common areas) or if connected to University activities, programs, or events. In addition, the University may exercise jurisdiction over conduct that occurs off-campus that affects the learning or working environment; or that would violate other conduct policies should it have occurred on campus.

#### Notifications

The Title IX Officer is responsible for ensuring the following notifications are made in a timely manner.

- 1. Individuals making reports shall be informed about:
  - a. confidentiality of reports, including when reports cannot be kept confidential.
  - b. the range of possible outcomes of the report, including health and safety measures, remedies, and disciplinary actions that may be taken against the Respondent, and information about the procedures leading to such outcomes.
- 2. If the report results in a formal investigation, after the conclusion of the investigation, the Complainant and Respondent will be simultaneously informed in writing of:
  - a. the outcome of the investigation and its rationale;
  - b. any available appeal rights and procedures; and
  - c. how to obtain a copy of the Investigation Report, which may be redacted as necessary to protect privacy rights.
- 3. If the matter results in a disciplinary proceeding, after that proceeding the Complainant and the Respondent will be simultaneously informed in writing of:
  - a. the outcome of the disciplinary proceeding, including the final determination with respect to the alleged offense, any sanction that is imposed, and the rationale for the results;
  - b. any available appeal rights and procedures; and
  - c. any subsequent change to the results and when results will become final. The Complainant will be sent a notice documenting any individual remedies offered to the Complainant, and other steps taken to eliminate the effects of the violation. The Respondent will be informed of no contact orders affecting them, but should not be notified of other individual remedies offered or provided to the Complainant.

#### **Overview of Resolution Processes**

Reports of prohibited conduct may be addressed through alternative resolution, formal investigation or, a separate employee grievance or complaint process.

After a preliminary assessment of the facts, and, if useful, in consultation with other offices depending on whether the Complainant and Respondent are faculty, other academic appointees, staff, student employees, or students, the Title IX Officer may initiate an Alternative Resolution process, which may include:

- mediation (except in cases of sexual violence);
- separating the parties;
- providing for safety;
- referring the parties to counseling;
- referral for disciplinary action;
- a settlement agreement;
- conducting targeted preventive educational and training programs; and
- conducting a follow-up review to ensure that the resolution has been implemented effectively.

Alternative Resolution may be especially useful when: a report is made by a third party or anonymously; a Formal Investigation is not likely to lead to a resolution; both parties prefer an informal process; or a case involves less serious violations. The Complainant has the right to request a Formal Investigation at any time, but the Title IX Officer has final authority for determining whether to initiate a Formal Investigation. Both the Complainant and Respondent may be accompanied by an advisor throughout the process.

If Alternative Resolution is inappropriate or unsuccessful, the Title IX Officer may initiate a Formal Investigation in coordination with other offices, depending on whether the Complainant and Respondent are faculty, other academic appointees, staff, or students. A Complainant's request for an investigation will be considered but is not determinative.

If the Complainant requests that no investigation occur, the Title IX Officer shall determine whether the allegations nonetheless require an investigation to mitigate a potential risk to the campus community. If proceeding with an investigation without the participation of a Complainant, the Title IX Officer shall attempt to maintain the identity of the Complainant confidential from the Respondent or inform the Complainant that such confidentiality cannot be maintained. If determining not to proceed with an investigation, the Title IX Officer shall inform the Complainant that the ability to provide remedies may be limited, but the Title IX Officer shall nonetheless afford such remedies as are consistent with maintaining confidentiality and the absence of an administrative finding.

When the Title IX Officer determines to conduct a Formal Investigation, the Complainant and Respondent will be provided with a written summary of the allegations, the procedures that will be followed, resources available to them, and a copy of the Policy.

The investigation shall be completed promptly, typically within 60 business days of its initiation, unless extended by the Title IX Officer for good cause followed by written notice to the Complainant and Respondent of the reason for the extension and the projected new timeline. If the alleged conduct is also the subject of a criminal investigation, the Title IX Office will

coordinate its investigation with the police but must nonetheless act promptly without delaying its investigation until the conclusion of the criminal investigation.

The investigation generally includes interviews with the Complainant, the Respondent, and witnesses, if available, and a review of documents as appropriate. Disclosure of facts to persons interviewed shall be limited to what is reasonably necessary to conduct a fair and thorough investigation. Participants in an investigation may be advised to maintain confidentiality when essential to protect the integrity of the investigation.

The Complainant or Respondent may have an advisor present when personally interviewed and at any related meeting. Other support persons may be allowed under other policies. Other witnesses may have an advisor present at the discretion of the investigator or as required by University policy or collective bargaining agreement.

In cases where the investigation contemplates issues of academic merit or academic freedom, the investigator shall consult with the appropriate academic officer for relevant academic judgment.

During or upon the completion of investigation, the investigators will meet with the Title IX Coordinator. Based on that meeting, the Title IX Coordinator will decide on whether there is reasonable cause to proceed with the complaint. If the Title IX Coordinator decides that no policy violation has occurred or that the preponderance of evidence does not support a finding of a policy violation, then the process will end unless the Title IX Coordinator is convinced by new evidence to re- open the investigation. This decision lies in the sole discretion of the Title IX Coordinator. If there is reasonable cause, the Title IX Coordinator will direct the investigation to continue, or if there is a preponderance of evidence of a violation, then the Title IX Coordinator may recommend conflict resolution, a resolution without a hearing or a formal hearing, based on the below criteria.

Procedures for handling reported incidents are fully described below. Deliberately false and/or malicious accusations of harassment, as opposed to complaints which, even if erroneous, are made in good faith, are serious offenses and will be subject to appropriate disciplinary action.

The standard for determining a violation of the Title IX Policy is that of a *"preponderance of the evidence"* - meaning it is more likely than not that a violation occurred.

#### **Grievance/Complaint Procedures for Employees**

Instead of, or in addition to, reporting to the Title IX Officer or other responsible employee, a University employee who believes they have been subjected to prohibited conduct may file a grievance or complaint. That grievance or complaint must meet all the requirements, including time limits for filing, under the applicable complaint resolution or grievance procedure listed in Appendix I: University Complaint Resolution and Grievance Procedures. Any such grievance or complaint will be forwarded to the Title IX Officer for processing under this Policy, and the grievance or complaint procedure will be held in abeyance pending resolution under this Policy.

After completion of the process under this Policy, the grievance or complaint may be reactivated but only as a means of appeal.

#### **The Investigation Report**

If a Formal Investigation is conducted, the investigator will prepare a written report that includes a statement of the allegations and issues, the positions of the Complainant and Respondent, a summary of the evidence, an explanation why any proffered evidence was not investigated, and findings of fact and an analysis of whether a violation has occurred. When both parties are students, the report will include a recommendation to the Student Conduct Officer regarding whether there are any policy violations. For all other matters the report will include an analysis and determination by the investigator of whether this Policy has been violated. The investigator will apply the preponderance of evidence standard.

If the Report finds prohibited conduct in violation of this policy, the University shall take prompt and effective steps reasonably calculated to stop the violation, prevent its recurrence, and, as appropriate, remedy its effects. To the extent that the remedy has not already been provided, the Title IX Officer, in consultation with appropriate administrators, will oversee the implementation of this remedy.

The Title IX Officer shall forward the investigation report (with attachments and any necessary redactions) to the appropriate administrator responsible for discipline. The specific procedures for imposing discipline depend upon the nature of the Respondent's relationship to the University (student, faculty, other academic appointee, staff, or third party). If there is a question about the Respondent's relationship to the University, the Title IX Officer should indicate which role predominated when the Respondent engaged in the prohibited conduct. When a Respondent is both a student and an employee (such as a student worker, assistant to the instructor, or teaching assistant), the Respondent may be subject to both the sanctions applicable to students and to employees.

Any member of the University community who is found to have engaged in prohibited conduct may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal in accordance with the applicable University disciplinary procedure or other policy.

#### Title IX Officer Tasks and Responsibilities

The responsibilities of the Title IX Officer include, but may not be limited to, the following duties:

- 1. Coordinate compliance with Title IX, including investigations, reports and remedies.
- 2. Coordinate with other responsible units to ensure that local sexual violence and sexual harassment prevention education and training programs are offered and provided, as required by the policy.
- 3. Provide educational materials to promote compliance with the policy and familiarity with City of Oakland and State of California reporting procedures.

- 4. Provide training for University employees who are responsible for reporting or responding to reports of prohibited conduct.
- 5. Provide prompt and equitable response to reports of prohibited conduct per the policy.
- 6. Maintain records of reports of prohibited conduct at campus locations, as well as any actions taken in response to reports, including records of investigations, resolutions, and disciplinary action, in accordance with University records management policies.
- 7. Identify and address any patterns or systemic problems that arise during the review of prohibited conduct reports.
- 8. Post on the Lincoln University website the names and contact information of the Title IX Officer and of additional designated, trained, sexual harassment or sexual violence advisors.
- 9. Designate deputies or persons who can offer confidential consultations, without reporting the incident to the Title IX Officer, to any member of the University community seeking information, or advice about making a report of prohibited conduct. Each location
- 10. Provide mandatory annual training and education, about prohibited conduct and how such conduct can be reported, to all students, faculty, other academic appointees, and staff in accordance with applicable State and federal law, and University policies.
- 11. Offer primary prevention programs and awareness campaigns to the University community to promote ongoing awareness of sexual violence, including preventing dating violence, domestic violence, sexual assault, and stalking. These campaigns will include, but are not limited to, education about the definition of consent, consensual relationships, options for bystander intervention, trauma-informed approaches, and risk reduction awareness information. These programs are to promote behaviors that foster healthy and respectful relationships while also encouraging a safe environment for bystanders to intervene in a potential case of dating violence, domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking.
- 12. Follow University established and approved processes for investigation, adjudication, and sanctioning.
- 13. Provide comprehensive, regular training with a trauma-informed perspective for individuals responsible for responding to reports of prohibited conduct.
- 14. Distribute and post to students, faculty, other academic appointees and staff, by such means as the university catalog, websites, student information boards and student orientation sessions.

#### Lincoln University Notice of Non-Discrimination & Contact Information For the Title IX Coordinator

Lincoln University is committed to providing a working and educational environment that is free from discrimination and harassment. Lincoln University prohibits harassment and discrimination on the basis of gender, gender identity, gender expression, ethnic origin,

disability, genetic information, covered veteran status, sexual orientation, age, race, color, or religion, and any other basis protected by federal, state, and local laws on-campus and in any LU programs or activities. Inquiries about Lincoln University's polices and compliance with Title IX should be directed to:

Dr. Michael A. Guerra Administrative Vice-President & Title IX Coordinator Lincoln University 401 15<sup>th</sup> Street Oakland, CA 945612 1.51.628.8031 mguerra@lincolnuca.edu